
Mark Saccoccio 
Town Clerk 

  01525 631920
   info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

The Council Chamber, The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, Beds, LU7 1HD

4 May 2018

To:  Members of the Market Sub Committee (Councillors M Freeman, K Cursons, 
D Bowater, S Cotter, T Morris and B Spurr)
(Copies to all Town Councillors for information)

NOTICE OF MEETING

You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of Market Sub Committee to be held 
on Thursday, 17 May 2018 commencing at 10.00 am in the The Council Chamber, The 
White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, Beds, 
LU7 1HD. 

M Saccoccio 
Town Clerk

AGENDA

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Schedule 12 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires a record be kept of the 
Members present and that this record form part of the minutes of the meeting. 
Members who cannot attend a meeting should tender apologies to the Town 
Clerk.

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

(i) Under the Localism Act 2011 (sections 26-37 and Schedule 4) and in 
accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, Members are required to 
declare any interests which are not currently entered in the Member’s 
Register of Interests or if he/she has not notified the Monitoring Officer of it. 

(ii) Should any Member have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in an item on 
the agenda, the Member may not participate in consideration of that item 
unless a Dispensation has first been requested (in writing) and granted by 
the Council (see Dispensation Procedure).

3.  QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC (3 MINUTES PER PERSON; MAXIMUM 15 
MINUTES) 

To receive questions and statements from members of the public in respect of 
any item of business included in the agenda, as provided for in Standing Order 
No.s 1(f) and 1(h).

THIS MEETING MAY 
BE RECORDED *

Public Document Pack

mailto:info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
http://www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk/


MARKET SUB COMMITTEE Thursday, 17 May 2018

4.  MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 4)

To receive and approve as a correct record the minutes of the Market Sub-
Committee meeting held on 1 February 2018. 

5.  GENERAL MARKET UPDATE (Pages 5 - 36)

To receive a general update on market activity (to follow)

6.  MARKET BUDGET REPORT (Pages 37 - 42)

To receive a report on the market budgets and to consider any 
recommendation/s contained therein (to follow)

* Phones and other equipment may be used to film, audio record, tweet or blog from this meeting by an individual Council member, 
officer or member of the public.  No part of the meeting room is exempt from public filming unless the meeting resolves to go into 
exempt session.  The use of images or recordings arising from this is not within the Council’s control.



 

Page 46

LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL

MARKETS SUB-COMMITTEE

THURSDAY 1 FEBRUARY 2018 AT 1000 HOURS

Present:  Councillors D Bowater 
J M Freeman (Chair)
T Morris
S Cotter
C Palmer (substituting K Cursons)

 
                      Also in attendance:      M Saccoccio (Town Clerk)

V Cannon (Head of Cultural and Economic 
Services) 
A Harrison (Market Manager)
M Jahn (Committee Officer)
J Martindale (Project Officer)
K Young (Market Trader Representative) 
D Gibbons (Market Trader Representative)

           Members of the Public: 1
           Members of the Press: 0

The Chairman opened the meeting by welcoming those present.

092/MK APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence had been received from Councillor B Spurr and 
Councillor K Cursons (by Councillor C Palmer).

093/MK DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

Members were asked to declare any interests, including the nature of those 
interests, which they had in any of the items under consideration at this 
meeting.  No declarations were made. 

094/MK QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC

Questions were raised regarding the market layout and the issue market trader 
rents.  Concerns were voiced on what impact these rises would have on the 
market and whether some traders would be able to continue at Leighton 
Buzzard Market.

095/MK MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

The Sub-Committee received the draft minutes of the previous meeting, held 
on 2 November 2017 for consideration. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Market Sub-Committee 1 February 2018 
                                                                                                                                                               

Page 47

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Markets Sub-Committee meeting held 
on 2 November 2017 be approved as a correct record and were signed 
accordingly.

096/MK MARKET GENERAL UPDATE
 
The Sub-Committee received an update report on market activity from the 
Market Manager.  Apple Day was cancelled due to bad weather in 2017 but it 
was hoped to run the event this year and the cycle event deferred from 
November 2017 would take place later in the year. The Christmas Eve Eve 
market was delivered at full capacity with all 40 gazebos in use.  Trader 
recruitment would continue to be monitored with a new trader signed up for the 
Tuesday market and two traders transferred from the pop up market onto the 
Craft Market.  

Investment would continue with ground fixings being purchased for the market 
umbrellas to help with erection/take down times. New blue striped cover sheets 
had been purchased and given to those traders who continue to use their own 
stalls in order to achieve the standards of presentation endorsed by the 
Committee.  

Publicity via social media, Facebook and twitter, was proving beneficial as 
traders could now promote their produce and general information about the 
market could be circulated to a wider audience. Bespoke training would be 
offered to traders on how to use this platform to their best advantage and 
details would be confirmed in the next few days.

The Market Manager visited other markets in Epping and Aylesbury to 
understand how they operate and our own market was visited by Harpenden 
Council’s Town Clerk to gain understanding of how the market looked and ran.

In January officers attended a one-day NABMA Conference ‘Markets Through 
Partnership’ and the Market Manager has been enrolled onto the NABMA 
Market Diploma in Markets Administration course for 2018 to start in early 
March 2018.

RESOLVED to note the report.

097/MK REVIEW OF CURRENT POLICY DOCUMENTS

(a) The Sub-Committee received a report recommending a revision of the 
Market Cancellation Policy.  The report proposed revised conditions 
regarding adverse weather conditions, erecting gazebos in snow and icy 
conditions and the charging conditions if a market is cancelled.

RESOLVED to recommend to Cultural and Economic Services Committee 
to endorse the revised Market Cancellation Policy.

Page 2



Market Sub-Committee 1 February 2018 
                                                                                                                                                               

Page 48

(b) The Sub-Committee received a report recommending minor 
amendments to the revised Community/Charity Pitch Policy and creation 
of a Community Tuesday Speciality Market to take place once a month.

RESOLVED to recommend to Cultural and Economic Services Committee 

1.1 to endorse the minor amendments to the revised 
Community/Charity Pitch Policy.

1.2 to endorse the creation of a Community Tuesday Speciality Market 
to take place once per month.

098/MK BUDGET REPORT

The Sub-Committee received a budget report for July to September 2017. It 
was noted that the Market was an asset for the community and is being 
subsidised by the Council. The Chair confirmed a decision had been taken by 
the Council to run the market as a community event with a subsidy if required 
but the aim would be to reduce the subsidy.   

RESOLVED to note the report 

099/MK    MARKET RELAUNCH DELIVERY UPDATE AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

The Sub-Committee received a verbal update on the progress of the market 
relaunch activity, ongoing improvement work and an outline of a new market 
development plan. 

The findings of a survey conducted by the Traders Representatives was 
passed on to the Head of Cultural and Economic Development for 
consideration.

RESOLVED to note the information.

The time of the next meeting of the Market Sub-Committee was amended to 
1000 hours on 17 May, 2018.

The meeting closed at 1159 hours.

I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE RECORD 
OF THE MEETING HELD ON 1 FEBRUARY 2018.

Chair 17 MAY 2018 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



MARKET DEVELOPMENT PLAN – MONITORING SHEETS  17 May 2018,  Agenda Item: 5
             Appendix A

1

A. THEMED AND SPECIALITY MARKETS ANNUAL PLAN DELIVERY

Themed Markets  2017/18 Comments Themed Markets 2018/19 Comments
April Easter Market & Easter Egg Hunt Delivered April Easter Market & Easter Egg Hunt Delivered
May – national Love Your Local Market 
Campaign, #LYLM2017

Delivered May _ National Love Your Local Market 
Fortnight Campaign #LYLM2018

July - Independent's Day (Sat 8th) Delivered July –  Independent's Day (Sat 7th)

August – (National Playday) Children's Day Delivered August –  National Playday) Children's Day
Cycle Event to be included TBC

September - British Food Fortnight
Delivered September - British Food Fortnight 17/9 – 

2/10

October – Apple Day
Cancelled Bad 

Weather October – Apple Day   (20th)

November – Cycle Event

Deferred to 
Spring/Summer 
2018 pending 

local group 
collaboration December -  Small Business Saturday

December -  Christmas ‘Eve’ Market Delivered December -  Christmas ‘Eve’ Market

February 18 – Fair Trade Fortnight Delivered February  – Fair Trade Fortnight

Visiting Markets 2017/18 Visiting Market 2018/19
May 6th - 7th – France at Home Market Delivered May - France at Home Market 11 -12 May 2018

P
age 5

A
genda Item

 5



MARKET DEVELOPMENT PLAN – MONITORING SHEETS  17 May 2018,  Agenda Item: 5
             Appendix A

2

B. TRADER RECRUITMENT AND RETENTION 

*Pop Up Market 12 Traders Qu 1                           Key:     ‘C’ = Casual trader;       ‘P’ = Permanent trader

  April 2016/17 Qu 1 Qu2 Qu3 Qu4 Annual total
 Year 1 Targets Apr - Jun Jul – Sep Oct - Dec Jan - Mar
Tuesday Increase of 5 stalls 0(P) & 0(C) 0(P) & 0(C) -1(P) & 1(C) -1(P) & 2(C) +3
Saturday Increase of 4 stalls 0(P) & 0(C) -1(P)  & 2(C) 0(P) & 2 (C) -3(P) & 7(C) +11
Farmers Increase of 3 stalls -2 0 0 +4 +4
Speciality 1 additional Speciality Italian Market +1
Craft Increase of 1 stall 1 -1 -2 +3 +4

April 2017/18 Qu 1 Qu 2 Qu 3 Qu 4 Annual total
Year 2 Targets April – Jun Jul-Sep Oct-Dec Jan-Mar

Tuesday Increase of 2 stalls 1(P) & 4 (C) 0(P) & 1 (C)
-1 (C)

0(P) & 5 (C) 2(P) & 4(C)
-1 (P)

2(P) & 13(C)

Saturday Increase of 6 stalls     2(P) & 4(C) 0(P) & (2(C)
-1(P)

2(P) & 5(C) O(P) & 4(C)
-1(P)

2(P) & 15(C)
              

Farmers 1 additional speciality 0 2 0 1 &-1 +2

Speciality * Increase of 1 stall * ** *** **** Total for year 36
(Pop Up Mkt)

Craft Increase of 1 stall 1 1 3 2 +7
2018/19 Qu 1 Qu 2 Qu 3 Qu 4

Year 3 Targets 
Tuesday Increase of 1 stall
Saturday Increase of 1 stall
Farmers Increase of 1 stall
Speciality 1 additional speciality
Craft Increase of 1 stall

P
age 6



MARKET DEVELOPMENT PLAN – MONITORING SHEETS  17 May 2018,  Agenda Item: 5
             Appendix A

3

** Pop Up Market 13 Traders Qu 2
*** Pop Up Market 10 Traders Qu 3
**** Pop Up Market  1 Trader   Qu4

P
age 7



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Market_Rules_&_Regulations_Rev_August_2017

The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, LU7 1HD 
Tel: 01525 631920
Email: info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
Website: www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

Agenda Item 5 Appendix B

Amendments to Market Documents 

Leighton Buzzard Market Rules and Regulations 2017

1. All Traders and their representatives must have the Right to Work in the United Kingdom.
2. All traders must have a minimum of £5 million Public Liability Insurance and Employee liability 

where applicable. This is a legal requirement.
3. Rents are reviewed annually at committee.
4. All pitches must be occupied by 8:00am. Any trader who arrives after this time without prior 

consent or notification by phone that morning may lose their pitch on the day and any due rent 
will still be levied.

5. Trading hours are from 9:00am to 4:00pm with the exception of the Farmers Market where 
trading hours are from 9:00am to 1:00pm. No trader is to leave the market before 4:00pm 
without prior consent of the Market Manager, with exception of the Farmers Market.

6. All vehicles to be off site by 9:00am. Vehicles may return onsite from 3:00pm but stall fronts 
are not to be packed away until market closes at 4:00pm. Any trader in breach of this will be 
issued with a verbal warning in accordance to disciplinary procedures.

7. All vehicles must use hazard warnings lights at all times when entering and leaving the High 
Street and adhere to a 10mph speed limit.

8. Traders are expected to leave their pitch clean and tidy and in the manner they found on 
arrival (see Market Standards document for further information).

9. Rents will be collected daily and is to be provided when requested by the Market Manager or 
representative. Failure to pay rent may incur a fine. As a regular trader, any day that you are 
absent, you will still be liable for the rent. This includes vehicle breakdown (unless taken as 
holiday). Sickness will be treated as holiday unless supported by doctor’s note.

10.Regular traders are permitted four holiday days a year per trading day. These must be booked 
at least 24 hours in advance.

11.Traders are to comply with current Consumer Rights Act 2015 (and any future amendments 
in Law)

12.Anti-social or abusive behaviour will not be tolerated at any time and liable to disciplinary 
procedures.

13.No music or radios to be played on site until after 9:00am and may be subject to PRS licence.
14.Traders shall not display or offer for sale any illegal, counterfeit or copyright infringing goods 

that do not comply with Consumer Rights Act 2015. We are a ‘Real Deal’ Market.
15.  Traders must not change their product line without the expressed permission of the Market 

Manager and the completion of a new trader agreement.
16.Allocation of stalls is managed at the sole discretion of the Market Manager or representative 

and must be adhered to.
17.No goods are to be sold or displayed beyond the foot print of the stalls and no encroachment 

onto footpaths is allowed without prior agreement of the Market Manager or representative.
18.There is to be no sub-letting of stalls.
19.Trader parking is made available by the principle authority, Central Bedfordshire Council (at 

present is an area behind Duncombe Drive car park. Parking is free but at your own risk).
20.The market may be cancelled on the day or ahead of trading on the grounds of public safety 

including severe weather, acts of god, terrorism, one off sporting event etc. See cancellation 
policy. Page 9



Market_Rules_&_Regulations_Rev_August_2017

The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, LU7 1HD 
Tel: 01525 631920
Email: info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
Website: www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

21.All traders are to comply with current 
legislation regarding Food Hygiene and Safety and must meet our guidelines in the Food 
Trader Appendix where appropriate. This includes the use of all Gas Cylinders and appliances 
and traders should be able to demonstrate a Gas Safety Procedure.

22.All electricity points are 110v. Electricity is charged for. Traders must supply their own step up 
boxes and cables.

23.All electrical items must comply with annual PAT tests and certificates must be shown on 
request.

24.Each stall must have rubber cable covers for anyone needing the use of electricity cables – 
these cables should be covered if they are on the ground. All cables must be raised in the risk 
assessment.

25.The use of small portable low noise generators and their location must be approved by the 
Market Manager or representative prior to their use.

26.Small portable low noise generators will need to be positioned so as to ensure that:
 they do not present a danger to the passing public;
 they do not present a fire or similar hazard risk to the stall or goods displayed;
 they do not produce fumes or any airborne solids, or noise, including vibration, beyond 

that reasonably expected in normal use, having regard to the proper functioning of 
any equipment;

 any inflammable fuel not being used shall be stored away from the stall in a location 
and container conforming to The Petroleum (Consolidation) Regulations 2014.

 Any generator shall be turned off at the discretion of the Market Manager or 
representative if it is felt that a nuisance is being caused.

27.Appropriate licensing and rules overseeing sales of certain products (alcohol, tobacco, knives 
etc.) must be maintained and updated as per law amendments.

** PLEASE NOTE**

Leighton-Linslade Town Council or the Local Authority may make recommendations as to the look 
and feel of your stall and may request reasonable changes to be made – this is to be done within 
two weeks from being asked.

All Rules and Regulations are subject to Leighton-Linslade Town Council’s discretion, through the 
Market Manager or their representative.

If you have any questions or queries regarding this, please do not hesitate to contact to the Market 
Manager.

These rules will be enforced and are to the benefit of ALL. Any trader in breach of them will 
be dealt with subject to Disciplinary Procedures.

Page 10



Market_Rules_&_Regulations_Rev_August_2017

The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, LU7 1HD 
Tel: 01525 631920
Email: info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
Website: www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

LEIGHTON BUZZARD MARKET
CHARITY STALL GUIDELINES

The aims of providing a free charity stall is to create awareness of local social infrastructure and 
activities that residents may wish to take part in or receive support from. It also provides the 
opportunity to raise funds.

a. One free pitch shall be offered each year (March to March) to each individual charity and 
community group.

b. The pitch may be booked no more than six weeks in advance of the attendance date.
c. The pitch size must not exceed 3mx3m (Market Manager discretion to be applied).
d. In the interests of impartiality and to safeguard the Council administration as an independent 

body, the use of town events and the town market for Party Political purposes and all other 
activities associated thereof will not be granted unless special circumstances determine 
otherwise. As the Responsible Officer to the Council, the decision to either grant or refuse 
permission will rest with the Town Clerk.

e. The placement of the pitch is at the discretion of the Market Manager or their representative.
f. Additional attendances of the market shall incur a nominal fee and subject to availability.

N.B. Should a Political party wish the use of the public highway for that purpose, it is advised that 
contact be made with the principal authority who can advise as to the necessary documentation 
required for that particular purpose.

By attending Leighton Buzzard Market as a Charity or Community stall, you agree to abide by these 
guidelines.
The Town Council’s Privacy Notice can be viewed on its website.

Page 11



Market_Rules_&_Regulations_Rev_August_2017

The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, LU7 1HD 
Tel: 01525 631920
Email: info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
Website: www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

Temporary Day License to trade on Leighton Buzzard Market

License Holder information

Title:  Full Name:  

Trading Name: 

Address:

Town/City: Post Code:

Tel:

E-mail address:

National Insurance number:

Licensed to sell:

If Applicable: Associate Trader or Reprensentative Information

Person One Person Two

Disclaimer and Signature

Leighton-Linslade Town Council reserves the right to extend this temporary day license as required. I certify that 
the information provided is true and complete to the best of my knowledge, inline with my application and the 
Rules and Regulations. After four weeks probational period a formal license will be offered. 

The Town Council’s Privacy Notice can be viewed on its website.

We will store this information electronically and securely from date of issue until 12 months from the 
last date you have traded with us.

Title: Full Name: Title: Full Name:

Tel: Tel:

Email: Email:

National Insurance Number: National Insurance Number:

The information requested is necessary to ensure that 
we know who is working on our Market and to cover 
our obligation to ensure that traders on our Market are 
trading and working legally in the UK. By supplying 
this information, you agree that your associate 
trader/representative adheres to this.

The information requested is necessary to ensure that 
we know who is working on our Market and to cover our 
obligation to ensure that traders on our Market are 
trading and working legally in the UK. By supplying this 
information, you agree that your associate 
trader/representative adheres to this.

Page 12



Market_Rules_&_Regulations_Rev_August_2017

The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, LU7 1HD 
Tel: 01525 631920
Email: info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
Website: www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

Trader Signature:                                                                                  Print Name: 

Date: ____/____ /____ (dd/mm/yyyy)

Market Manager/Representative Signature:                                                                     

Date: ____/____ /____ (dd/mm/yyyy)

Staff use only

Date of first market: Date of fourth market:

Date of second market: Date of fifth market:

Date of third market: Date of license issued:

Page 13



Market_Rules_&_Regulations_Rev_August_2017

The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, LU7 1HD 
Tel: 01525 631920
Email: info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
Website: www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

LEIGHTON BUZZARD MARKET LICENSE

THIS LICENSE is granted on the day of 20     by LEIGHTON LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL of 
the White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard (“the Council”) (1) to the licensee described in the First 
Schedule attached hereto (“the Trader”) (2)

WHEREAS

(1) The Council are the owners of the markets held in Leighton Buzzard Town Centre (“the 
Markets”) and as owners are vested with the rights and duties of holding regulating and 
controlling any markets on the land in the Town Centre and more specifically on days when 
a Market is not being held at the Market Place, the Council uses the land for such other uses 
as appropriate for the time being;

(2) The Trader has requested the Council to grant him/her a license to use a stall for trading in 
the articles mentioned below on the Market Place;

(3) This License supersedes all previous agreements between the parties.

IT IS AGREED AS FOLLOWS:

The Council hereby grants to the Trader the right to use on the Market days described in the 
First Schedule hereto for the sale of goods and articles mentioned therein the stall/pitch on 
the Market Place known as the stall/pitch number described in the First Schedule attached 
hereto or such other stall/pitch of equivalent size and position as the Council may from time 
to time in its absolute discretion determine and the right to use of the stall/pitch shall continue 
from week to week commencing on a date specified in the First Schedule hereto unless 
determined by four weeks’ notice in writing by either party such notice to expire at any time.

2. Conditions

The conditions on which the above right is granted are as follows:

2.1 Payments

The Trader shall pay to the Council on the first day of each month the License fees (including 
any variation thereto) as provided for in the First Schedule hereto in advance until the 
determination of the right to use the stall/pitch under this Licence.  Such payment is to be 
made by Direct Debit or daily in cash.

2.2 Compliance with Bylaws and Regulations

The Trader will comply with Statutory Regulations and General Market Regulations, the latter 
being attached as the Second Schedule hereto or rules made by the Council with respect to 
the Market now subsisting or from time to time made by the Council.

Page 14



Market_Rules_&_Regulations_Rev_August_2017

The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, LU7 1HD 
Tel: 01525 631920
Email: info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
Website: www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

2.3 Use of Stall/Pitch

The Trader shall use the stall/pitch for permitted retail sales as defined in the First Schedule 
attached to this Agreement on the Market days only in each week (excepting statutory or local 
holidays and other days excluded by the Council) and such other days as the Council may 
from time to time prescribe.

2.4 Nuisance

The Trader must not do or permit anything which in the opinion of the Markets Manager may 
be or become a nuisance to any member of the public using the Market, neighbouring 
business such as shops or any occupiers of neighbouring or adjoining stalls/pitches or which 
may be detrimental to the efficient running of the Market and to use the stall/pitch in a diligent 
and business-like manner.

2.5 Opening Hours

2.5.1 The Trader shall open his/her stall/pitch between the hours set out in the Market 
Regulations attached to this License on the relevant Market day;

2.5.2 The Trader is required to maintain a satisfactory display of their goods to the 
reasonable satisfaction of the Markets Manager until the time prescribed for the market 
to close.  Excess stock may be packed but the Trader must not close and pack up 
before the said closing time.

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER AGREED as follows:

1. This License may be determined by the Council immediately but in relation to condition 1.3 
below only and without prejudice to the appeals procedure contained in the Second Schedule 
attached hereto and without prejudice to any claim of the Council in respect of the sums due 
hereunder or any antecedent breach by the Trader of any other condition or stipulation herein 
contained if:

1.1 The Trader has failed to pay any sum due under this Agreement for a period of 21 days after 
becoming due whether it has been demanded or not;

1.2 The Trader has failed to carry on business at the stall for a period of four successive weeks 
without giving the Markets Manager a reasonable explanation in writing addressed to him at 
The White House, Hockliffe Street., Leighton Buzzard, LU7 1HD or via e-mail: 
markets@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk;

1.3 The Trader has failed to observe or perform the conditions referred to herein or any of the 
General Market Regulations attached in the Second Schedule hereto;

1.4 The Trader has become bankrupt or being a company has entered into liquidation whether 
compulsory or voluntary.

2. This License is personal to the Trader and the parties acknowledge that nothing in this 
License shall be construed as creating the relationship of landlord and tenant.

Page 15



Market_Rules_&_Regulations_Rev_August_2017

The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, LU7 1HD 
Tel: 01525 631920
Email: info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
Website: www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

3. If the Trader shall fail to take possession of 
the stall/pitch on any Market day less than 1 hour before the Market opening time, the Markets 
Manager may at their absolute discretion refuse the Trader the right to trade on that Market 
day without prejudice to the right of the Council to recover from the Trader the charges in 
respect of that day.

4. The Trader shall have no claim against the Council for any loss, injury or damage through 
fire, theft or any other cause nor a claim for compensation or goodwill lost through termination 
of this agreement.

5. Any power, discretion or duty imposed on or granted to the Council or its Markets Manager 
may be exercised by any person, Officer or Body from time to time authorised on his/her 
behalf.

6. All references to the Markets Manager refer to such Officer appointed for the time being of 
the Council.

7. The Council may vary the License fees payable upon the service of four week’s written notice 
of such variation either served on the Trader personally or sent to their last known address.

Disclaimer and Signature

We will store this information electronically and securely for 12 months from the last date you have traded with us. Please 
ensure that we are notified of any change in your circumstances that may affect this License. We will not use this data for any 
other purpose other than registering your license with us.

The Town Council’s Privacy Notice can be viewed on its website.

I certify that the information provided is true and complete to the best of my knowledge.

Signed by the trader:                                                                            Date: ____/____ /____ (dd/mm/yyyy)

Name and Designation:

Signed on behalf of the Town Council:                                               Date: ____/____ /____ (dd/mm/yyyy)

Name and Designation:

Page 16



Market_Rules_&_Regulations_Rev_August_2017

The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, LU7 1HD 
Tel: 01525 631920
Email: info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
Website: www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

THE FIRST SCHEDULE: License Details

Commencement date of 
License:

Trading business name:

Name of the Trader(s):
(inc. all Business Partners)

Address of Trader(s):
(inc. all Business Partners)

Attending Market Days: Tuesday               Saturday             Other  
License Type: Casual  Permanent 
Market Location:
(Casual status has no 
designated pitch position)
Stall/Pitch Number(s):

Permitted Sales of:

Page 17



Market_Rules_&_Regulations_Rev_August_2017

The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, LU7 1HD 
Tel: 01525 631920
Email: info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
Website: www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

THE SECOND SCHEDULE: Market Rules & Regulations

1. All Traders and their representatives must have the Right to Work in the United Kingdom.
2. All traders must have a minimum of £5 million Public Liability Insurance and Employee liability 

where applicable. This is a legal requirement.
3. Rents are reviewed annually at committee.
4. All pitches must be occupied by 8:00am. Any trader who arrives after this time without prior 

consent or notification by phone that morning may lose their pitch on the day and any due rent 
will still be levied.

5. Trading hours are from 9:00am to 4:00pm with the exception of the Farmers Market where 
trading hours are from 9:00am to 1:00pm. No trader is to leave the market before 4:00pm 
without prior consent of the Market Manager, with exception of the Farmers Market.

6. All vehicles to be off site by 9:00am. Vehicles may return onsite from 3:00pm but stall fronts 
are not to be packed away until market closes at 4:00pm. Any trader in breach of this will be 
issued with a verbal warning in accordance to disciplinary procedures.

7. All vehicles must use hazard warnings lights at all times when entering and leaving the High 
Street and adhere to a 10mph speed limit.

8. Traders are expected to leave their pitch clean and tidy and in the manner they found on 
arrival (see Market Standards document for further information).

9. Rents will be collected daily and is to be provided when requested by the Market Manager or 
representative. Failure to pay rent may incur a fine. As a regular trader, any day that you are 
absent, you will still be liable for the rent. This includes vehicle breakdown (unless taken as 
holiday). Sickness will be treated as holiday unless supported by doctor’s note.

10.Regular traders are permitted four holiday days a year per trading day. These must be booked 
at least 24 hours in advance.

11.Traders are to comply with current Consumer Rights Act 2015 (and any future amendments 
in Law)

12.Anti-social or abusive behaviour will not be tolerated at any time and liable to disciplinary 
procedures.

13.No music or radios to be played on site until after 9:00am and may be subject to PRS licence.
14.Traders shall not display or offer for sale any illegal, counterfeit or copyright infringing goods 

that do not comply with Consumer Rights Act 2015. We are a ‘Real Deal’ Market.
15.  Traders must not change their product line without the expressed permission of the Market 

Manager and the completion of a new trader agreement.
16.Allocation of stalls is managed at the sole discretion of the Market Manager or representative 

and must be adhered to.
17.No goods are to be sold or displayed beyond the foot print of the stalls and no encroachment 

onto footpaths is allowed without prior agreement of the Market Manager or representative.
18.There is to be no sub-letting of stalls.
19.Trader parking is made available by the principle authority, Central Bedfordshire Council (at 

present is an area behind Duncombe Drive car park. Parking is free but at your own risk).
20.The market may be cancelled on the day or ahead of trading on the grounds of public safety 

including severe weather, acts of god, terrorism, one off sporting event etc. See cancellation 
policy.

Page 18



Market_Rules_&_Regulations_Rev_August_2017

The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, LU7 1HD 
Tel: 01525 631920
Email: info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
Website: www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

21.All traders are to comply with current legislation regarding Food Hygiene and Safety and must 
meet our guidelines in the Food Trader Appendix where appropriate. This includes the use of 
all Gas Cylinders and appliances and traders should be able to demonstrate a Gas Safety 
Procedure.

22.All electricity points are 110v. Electricity is charged for. Traders must supply their own step up 
boxes and cables.

23.All electrical items must comply with annual PAT tests and certificates must be shown on 
request.

24.Each stall must have rubber cable covers for anyone needing the use of electricity cables – 
these cables should be covered if they are on the ground. All cables must be raised in the risk 
assessment.

25. The use of small portable low noise generators and their location must be approved by the 
Market Manager or representative prior to their use.

26. Small portable low noise generators will need to be positioned so as to ensure that:
 they do not present a danger to the passing public;
 they do not present a fire or similar hazard risk to the stall or goods displayed;
 they do not produce fumes or any airborne solids, or noise, including vibration, beyond 

that reasonably expected in normal use, having regard to the proper functioning of 
any equipment;

 any inflammable fuel not being used shall be stored away from the stall in a location 
and container conforming to The Petroleum (Consolidation) Regulations 2014.

 Any generator shall be turned off at the discretion of the Market Manager or 
representative if it is felt that a nuisance is being caused.

27.Appropriate licensing and rules overseeing sales of certain products (alcohol, tobacco, knives 
etc.) must be maintained and updated as per law amendments.

** PLEASE NOTE**

Leighton-Linslade Town Council or the Local Authority may make recommendations as to the look and feel 
of your stall and may request reasonable changes to be made – this is to be done within two weeks from 
being asked.

All Rules and Regulations are subject to Leighton-Linslade Town Council’s discretion, through the Market 
Manager or their representative.

If you have any questions or queries regarding this, please do not hesitate to contact to the Market Manager.

These rules will be enforced and are to the benefit of ALL. Any trader in breach of them will be dealt with 
subject to Disciplinary Procedures.

Page 19



Market_Rules_&_Regulations_Rev_August_2017

The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, LU7 1HD 
Tel: 01525 631920
Email: info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
Website: www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

Market Trader Application

The Application process is managed by Leighton-Linslade Town Council and is designed in line with the 
Town Councils’ policies. The information requested below is necessary to cover our obligation to ensure 

that traders on our Market are trading and working legally in the UK. The contact information is required to 
allow us to contact you, please see information at the end of this form.

Applicant Information

Title:  Full Name:  

Trading Name: 

Address:

Town/City: Post Code:

Tel:

E-mail address:

National Insurance number (Not required for Charities):

Charity Number (If applicable):

Charity governing documents may be requested.

Website:                                                                         Check here if you are happy for us to promote your website ☐  

Social Media (Please provide usernames if you are happy for us to promote your channels): Facebook☐ Twitter☐  Instagram☐  
Other☐

Other markets currently attending (Town, days and type of market-so we get to know more about your business): 

Your Requirements 

Size of pitch required (Our standard pitch is 3mx3m with a maximum size of 3mx9m or 27m²) :

LLTC Pitch equipment required: Yes☐     No☐     If so, how many: 1☐  2☐ 3☐

Do you require a table?☐

(Pitch equipment is a 3mx3m gazebo for the general market and canopy umbrella for speciality market pitches.

Equipment, including tables are subject to availability)

Do you require Electric at an additional £2.00?☐

Free parking is available if required, we will direct you on your arrival.

Any other requirements:

Page 20



Market_Rules_&_Regulations_Rev_August_2017

The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, LU7 1HD 
Tel: 01525 631920
Email: info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
Website: www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

Which Market would you like to trade at?
Please answer relevant questions.

Weekly Charter Market Tuesday:☐    Saturday:☐

Please tick level of application

Permanent:☐   Casual:☐

Introductory offer:

Pay for first 4 weeks and the the 5th week free.

Cost: £23 p/w for a Casual Trader.

£19 p/w for a Permanent Trader plus benefits including 
holiday allocation and regular pitch location.

Pop-Up Market (First Saturday) ☐

This market gives the opportunity for local businesses who 
haven’t tried the market before to try it, as well as new start 
up businesses.

Public Liability Insurance is covered by LLTC

Burseries available to support new ventures, please speak to 
the Market Manager for more information.

Cost: £15 per attendance for a max. of 3 pop up markets.

Farmers Market (Third Saturday) ☐
Are goods produced within 50 miles from the market?☐

A representaive directly involved in the production process 
will be attending?☐

Produce sold is grown, reared, caught by the stall holder☐

Produce has been brewed, pickled, baked, smoked or 
processed by the stall holder using at least one ingredient 
grown or reared within the defined local area☐

Is information available about the production methods and 
ingredients?☐

Cost: £18 per attendance.

Handmade & Craft Market (Fourth Saturday) ☐

This speciality market runs from March through December 
annually.

A representaive directly involved in the creation process will 
be attending?☐

Is information available about the creative process?☐

Description of materials and processes used:

Cost: £20 per attendance.

Charity Stalls Tuesday:☐    Saturday:☐

Cost: Your first attendance is free of charge, it will then cost £10 per attendance for a maixmum of 4 weeks.

Community Tuesday (First Tuesday):☐

Cost: £10 per attendance.

Street charity collections must be registered, and a permit issued by Central Beds Council. There is no charge for a permit. You can find 
out more information here: https://tinyurl.com/yd4xe73q or visit www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

Dates you would like to attend:

Page 21

https://tinyurl.com/yd4xe73q


Market_Rules_&_Regulations_Rev_August_2017

The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, LU7 1HD 
Tel: 01525 631920
Email: info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
Website: www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

Description of product to be traded: (Please provide as much detail as possible, list of products and photos)

I am member of a guild, or have relevant certifications for my trade ☐ If so, please provide details:

Additional Information

A market licence can not be offered without the following information: 

Attach a copy of: Public Liability Insurance (£5m Cover). Including, cover certificate and policy 
number, and employee liability if applicable. Please also bring original copy on the 
day.

Pop Up Stalls Exempt.

Attach a copy of: Photographic ID (i.e. Driving licence or passport)
Proof of address (i.e. Council Tax Bill or Uitility Bill – not a mobile phone contract) 

Attach a copy of: Photographs or links to photographs online of your wares. 

Disclaimer and Signature

The contact details on this form will be used to contact you for various reasons, please opt-in below if you agree 
for us to contact you:

To notify you that the Market has been closed/cancelled ☐
About relevant markets, events & campaigns that maybe of interest to you ☐
For Market & Trader News i.e. LLTC Newsletter, notifcation of meetings or Market operational updates ☐

We will store this information electronically and securely for 12 months from date of enquiry or for 12 months 
from the last date you have traded with us. The Town Council’s Privacy Notice can be viewed on its website.

Please ensure that we are notified of any change in your contact details. 

I certify that the information provided is true and complete to the best of my knowledge. If this 
application leads to a market pitch, I understand that any breach in Market Rules and Regulations can 
result in my licence with Leighton-Linslade Town Council being terminated.

Signature:                                                                                  Print Name: 

Date: ____/____ /____ (dd/mm/yyyy)

On successful acceptance of this application, we will/may require completion of a risk assessment. If 
applicable, we will require copies of Electric/gas safety certificates; Hygiene Certificates; Alcohol Licenses.

LLTC has acquired a Premises License for Leighton Buzzard Town Centre, which permits the Council to host 
events and markets with live and recorded music.

Page 22



Market_Rules_&_Regulations_Rev_August_2017

The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, LU7 1HD 
Tel: 01525 631920
Email: info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
Website: www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

                                                               
                                                  

Market Trader Risk Assessment Questionnaire

The Application process is managed by Leighton-Linslade Town Council and is designed in line with the Town 
Councils’ policies. The information requested below is necessary to cover our obligation to ensure that traders on 

our Market are trading safely. 

Trading Name:

# Item Yes No N/A Notes

If providing your own stall, please 
answer all questions. If LLTC are 
supplying a stall, skip to Q.8

1 Is the stall a solid one piece unit (i.e. 
Pop-Up gazebo)?

2 Is the stall made of several parts?

3 Is your self erected stall in good, 
working condition and fit for 
purpose?

4 When erected does the stall form a 
solid structure and do you have 
sufficient measures for securing the 
stall against windy conditions?

5 If a canopy is used is it in good 
order and condition?

Please refer to Market Standards.

6 When the stall is fully erected does it 
remain in the boundary/pitch 
allocated by the council?

7 If tables/stands etc are to be used in 
conjunction with the stall are they in 
good and safe conditon?

The Market Manager or LLTC’s representative 
may ask you to take down your stal if s/he 
deems it unsafe.

8 Does your stall require a fire 
extinguisher (must be provided)?

9 Do you require electricity supply to 
your stall?

10 Do you use a generator with your 
stall?

If your generator is fuel powered where do you 
store the fuel?

11 Does your outlet require bottled gas 
supply?

Page 23



Market_Rules_&_Regulations_Rev_August_2017

The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, LU7 1HD 
Tel: 01525 631920
Email: info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
Website: www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

12 Are the regulators on your bottles 
gas supply checked and fit for 
purpose?

13 Do you posses a Gas Safe 
certificate for gas appliances?

Certificate required on request.

14 Are all 240v electrical items PAT 
tested?

Certificate required on request.

15 If your outlet requires personal food 
hygiene certificate(s) do all serving 
staff posses this?

All copies to be provided to the Council.

Disclaimer and Signature

I certify that the information provided is true and complete to the best of my knowledge and if anything 
changes I will inform the Market Manager. If this application leads to a market pitch, I understand that 
any breach in Market Rules and Regulations can result in my licence with Leighton-Linslade Town 
Council being terminated.

We will store this information electronically and securely for as long as you trade with us and for 3 
years thereafter, this is a legal requirement. Should an incident occur, we would keep the 
documentation on file for 6 years or if a child is involved – until legal date for the opportuity of a claim 
has passed. The Town Council’s Privacy Notice can be viewed on its website.

Signature:                                                                                  Print Name: 

Date: ____/____ /____ (dd/mm/yyyy)

Page 24



Market_Rules_&_Regulations_Rev_August_2017

The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, LU7 1HD 
Tel: 01525 631920
Email: info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
Website: www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

Sale of Alcohol

Leighton-Linslade Town Council has acquired a Premises License for Leighton Buzzard Town Centre, 
which permits the council to host events and markets with live and recorded music, and the sale of alcohol. 
Traders and their representatives who sell alcohol on Leighton Buzzard Market must adhere to the 
conditions as set out below in order to be granted permission to trade on the market.

Any trader wishing to sell alcohol must be a Personal License Holder (PLH) and uphold the licensing 
objectives:
                               Prevention of crime and disorder Public safety

       Prevention of public nuisance             Protection of children from harm

In upholding the above, you agree to:

1. In the absence of the Trader/Personal License Holder attending their stall, written consent from the 
PLH shall be provided to the Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) or person acting on their behalf, 
giving permission for their named representative/s to sell products on the PLH’s behalf (Please see 
Associated Trader information request below)

2.     The Trader/Personal License Holder shall maintain a refusals log, which will record details of when the 
sale of alcohol is refused as a result of the purchaser being unable to produce acceptable 
identification to prove they are over the age of 18 years. The refusals log at stalls selling alcohol will 
be produced for inspection by the Police and Authorised Officers of the Licensing Authority upon 
request.

3.     The Trader/Personal License Holder shall ensure that 'Challenge 25' posters are prominently 
displayed on their stall when selling alcoholic products.

If applicable: Associate Trader Information

This agreement grants permission for the person/s detailed below/overleaf to represent the Personal License 
Holder (PLH) to work either on behalf of, or in partnership with, the PLH on Leighton Buzzard Market/ Events.

Associate Trader or Representative of Personal License Holder

Person One Person Two

Page 25



Market_Rules_&_Regulations_Rev_August_2017

The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, LU7 1HD 
Tel: 01525 631920
Email: info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
Website: www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

Associate Trader or Representative of Personal License Holder

Person Three Person Four

You must notify the Market Manager or their representative if you work with a new Associate Trader acting 
on your behalf, new documentation will be issued for your completion and signature. We will store this 
information electronically and securely for 12 months from date of enquiry or for the duration of your license 
to trade on the market.

By signing this agreement, the PLH agrees to these licensing objectives and that themselves and the 
Associate Trader will adhere to the rules and regulations of the market. You agree that you have seen full 
legal documentation from the Associate Trader and that you are satisfied that they are legally allowed to work 
in the UK.

Title: Full Name: Title: Full Name:

Tel: Tel:

Email: Email:

National Insurance Number: National Insurance Number:

These contact details will be used to contact your 
Associate Trader if we deem it neccessary, please 
tick here if they give us permission to do so, by 
ticking this box we assume you have sought their 
permission ☐. We will store this information 
electronically and securely for 12 months from date 
of enquiry or for the duration of your license to trade 
on the market. The Town Council’s Privacy Notice 
can be viewed on its website.

These contact details will be used to contact your 
Associate Trader if we deem it neccessary, please 
tick here if they give us permission to do so, by 
ticking this box we assume you have sought their 
permission ☐. We will store this information 
electronically and securely for 12 months from date 
of enquiry or for the duration of your license to trade 
on the market.  The Town Council’s Privacy Notice 
can be viewed on its website.

Title: Full Name: Title: Full Name:

Tel: Tel:

Email: Email:

National Insurance Number: National Insurance Number:

These contact details will be used to contact your 
Associate Trader if we deem it neccessary, please 
tick here if they give us permission to do so, by 
ticking this box we assume you have sought their 
permission ☐. We will store this information 
electronically and securely for 12 months from date 
of enquiry or for the duration of your license to trade 
on the market. The Town Council’s Privacy Notice 
can be viewed on its website.

These contact details will be used to contact your 
Associate Trader if we deem it neccessary, please 
tick here if they give us permission to do so, by 
ticking this box we assume you have sought their 
permission ☐. We will store this information 
electronically and securely for 12 months from date 
of enquiry or for the duration of your license to trade 
on the market.  The Town Council’s Privacy Notice 
can be viewed on its website.

Page 26



Market_Rules_&_Regulations_Rev_August_2017

The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, LU7 1HD 
Tel: 01525 631920
Email: info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
Website: www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

Trader’s signature: 
Trading Name: 

Printed:

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Market_Rules_&_Regulations_Rev_August_2017

The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, LU7 1HD 
Tel: 01525 631920
Email: info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
Website: www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

Agenda Item 5 Appendix C

Market Documents to be endorsed.

LEIGHTON BUZZARD MARKET

MARKET PITCH BASED ELECTED COUNCILLOR SURGERIES

It is understood that the market provides a natural focal and gathering point for residents and 
visitors alike. 

It follows that it can provide both an opportunist and planned gathering mechanism for reaching 
out to members of the public inviting feedback on Town Council services and town-wide issues. 

As part of the Town Council’s ambition to explore and develop client-centred methods for 
communicating with their Elected Councillors, Councillor Surgeries will commence using a market 
pitch to engage with the public. 

In planning these surgeries, Elected Councillors are sensitive to the importance of maintaining the 
integrity of the market and its existing operational guidelines. 

Surgery pitches guidelines:

 Town Council and Central Bedfordshire Council elected Councillors will be held on 
separate market days.

 Town Council Councillors shall attend surgeries a minimum of 4 times a year on the 1st 
Saturday of the month at no charge.

 Central Bedfordshire Councillor Surgeries shall be permitted a minimum of 4 times a year 
at a charge of £10 per attendance.

 Elected Councillors only will be permitted to attend market surgeries.

 The market shall not be a venue for political gain or canvasing as per the current 
guidelines for Charity stalls. 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



Market Sub Committee                 Agenda Item No. 5

Date: 17 May 2018

Title:  Market General Update.

Purpose of the Report:                           To provide an update on market activity.

Contact Officer: Adrian Harrison, Market Manager 

Corporate Objective/s LLTC Three Year Plan –
Aim 2: To promote & develop a vibrant town through 
partnership working & initiatives including management of 
the street market, provision town & community 
promotions, town centre enhancements, tourism & 
practical support for local businesses.

Implications:
Operational/Service delivery x Market Development Plan – Recorded 

actions/updates.

1. RECOMMENDATION/S

Should members be minded, the proposals are:

1.1 To note the report. 

1.2 To endorse minor amendments to Market Documents (attached at 
Appendix B) listed below which take into account the introduction of the 
General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) requirements:

a) Rules and Regulations

b) Charity Stall Guidelines

c) Temporary Day License

d) Leighton Buzzard Market License and schedules

e) Trader Application Form

f) Trader Risk Assessment

g) Alcohol Sales and Associate Trader form

1.3 To endorse the guidelines for Councillor Surgeries on Leighton Buzzard 
Market (attached at Appendix C)

Page 31



 

Page 2 of 6

2. DELIVERING AGAINST MARKET PLAN TARGETS

2.1 Delivery plan tables have been copied from the Market Development Plan 
(endorsed by Committee on 12/05/16, Ref: 037/MK) to create a monitoring 
document. This document is attached at Appendix A and will be presented at 
each committee for monitoring purposes.

2.2      Where there are obvious cross-over actions from the delivery plan and market 
relaunch plan, the re-launch plan will take precedent. 

3. DELIVERY PLAN UPDATES FOR QUARTER 4 – Jan-Mar 2017/2018 

3.1     Themed markets annual plan delivery

i. This year’s Easter Egg Hunt activity proved very successful with an increase in 
the number of children taking part compared to last year. Seventy-two children 
took part each taking home a small Easter egg kindly donated by Poundland. 
Social media was used to publicise the event and to thank Poundland for their 
support. It is hoped that this new collaboration will continue in the future.

ii. Market officers also worked closely with the Leighton Buzzard Scooter Club to 
facilitate its annual charity collection. Managing the large gathering of the 
scooters within the market area went well. Market social media sites were well 
used to the advantage of the scooter club and market alike for advertising the 
aim of the charity collection and promotion of the market. 

iii. Fairtrade Fortnight was mainly a social media campaign to highlight the 
difference fair trade can make to lives and communities. 

3.2  Market trader recruitment updates.

3.2.1   Trader recruitment and retention shows all targets set for the 2017/18 financial 
year have been achieved and exceeded. Committee will note the levels of 
casual traders is high. Over recent years a trend has emerged amongst traders 
to avoid commitment to one market enabling them to attend festivals and 
events. On a positive note, these traders are returning to Leighton Buzzard due 
to the new market offer as reported to the Market Manager by traders 
themselves. This trend is also promoted by The National Market Traders 
Federation (NMTF) as part of modern day trading.

3.2.2   General traders

           Book Stall (Tues) – signed permanent in March. He has traded at Leighton 
Buzzard before but previously felt it was not good value. Since the relaunch, he 
was contacted by the Market Manager and agreed to try the market again and 

Page 32



 

Page 3 of 6

has since offered feedback that he is impressed with the new offer and 
continues to attend.
 
Two traders left in this period. One due to product line not being suitable for 
summer trading but asked if it was possible to trade from September onwards. 
Upon return, he will be offered casual status rather than permanent. The second 
trader wanted to keep changing product lines most of which were already 
covered and subsequently moved on. (Having spoken with other market 
managers it is understood he has the same pattern with other markets).

3.2.3   Farmers market

One new trader started, however due to other commitments, he is yet to return. 
Officers remain in contact with the trader encouraging his return. The sough 
dough stall has stopped coming after seven months due to the local bakery 
baking the same product six days a week which affected his income.

3.2.4   Pop up market (Supporting start-up businesses)

 One new starter and few enquiries to date. In the previous year the first quarter 
showed a marked improvement in enquiries which suggests the weather and 
general economic climate may be having an impact.

3.2.5 Handmade and Craft market (March to December)

           i.  Full Cottage Candles – March 18 selling handmade candles in wax and gel.

           ii.  Andreea Ruxandra – March 18 Handmade jewellery.

           Since the March restart, the Craft market has remained consistent in numbers. 
The new social media campaigns and trader promotions have been well 
received with many traders reporting good feedback to the Market Manager.

4. GENERAL UPDATES

4.1.     In February, Andy Lever from NMTF came to Leighton Buzzard Market as part 
of his remit as Senior Field Support Officer. This is part of the NMTF way of 
keeping in touch with the ‘on the ground’ market industry. After walking the 
market he was asked what his first impressions were. He replied, “You certainly 
know that there is a market in this town. Many larger towns with bigger budgets 
don’t have such good signage.” Directional signage was an element of the re-
launch improvement plan. Referring to the market, Mr Lever said he was 
impressed at the trader attendance on a day when the weather was not at its 
kindest. He said that the gazebos looked good and they gave the impression of 
a large market. The price of the gazebos was discussed and he agreed that 
fees were very competitive and good value for the offer the Council provide.

Page 33



 

Page 4 of 6

4.2     Promotions and Marketing

  4.2.1 To launch the new Leighton Buzzard Market social media platforms, officers 
have enlisted the services of a social media specialist. The below information 
has been provided by the specialist to assist Committee’s understanding of 
progress to date:

The below information relates to Facebook insights for the period from 19th 
March - 15th April, this data changes daily as it is a rolling 28 days.

The figures show a slightly negative take on some areas, there is an anomaly 
in this report due to this period being compared to the previous 28 days which 
includes when the Market closed and of course the amount of engagement 
and ‘like’s to the page were high - which has been great for the market.

Although page ‘likes’ were down by 21% the market still had 67 new ‘likes’ this 
month. To put this in perspective, in Jan/Feb report it stated the market had 
received 36 ‘likes’ for the month so this is almost double, the 'Easter Rideout' 
Video (scooters leaving the town centre) has helped with this.

Overall page ‘likes’ are at 427, this period has an average of 397 ‘likes’ vs 324 
‘likes’ for the last period.

Actions (messaging) on the page is up by 100%. Video views is up by 465%, 
with the live Easter Ride-out video being viewed 2500 times (2216 unique 
viewers) and an average watch time of 21 seconds which is what has caused 
a spike in this figure.

This month has seen quite a few higher reaching posts, the highest reach have 
been; Easter Ride-out Video, Various Easter Picture Hunt posts (Thanking 
Poundland being the highest) and French Market/Craft Market/Farmers Market 
post - these were set-up as ‘events’ and this is being well received.

The most engaged posts were: Easter Picture Hunt (Thanking Poundland), 
Easter Ride-Out, French Market and the post sharing Facebook pages of 
traders. The average engagement on photo posts is 20 post clicks and 11 
engagements.

The least popular posts have been: a couple of shared posts from other 
accounts, Real Deal post, Community Tuesday and some general Charter 
Market posts.

Page 34



 

Page 5 of 6

The information below provides a snapshot of 19/3/18 activity.

     4.2.2 Traders are encouraged to hand out monthly prize draw vouchers to their 
customers during the last week of each month having purchased goods. The 
winner receives twenty-five pounds in five-pound vouchers to be spent on the 
market within the following month. The winners have all commented on how 
pleased they are to win and that the market is giving something back to its 
customers. There is also a social media campaign that promotes awareness of 
this initiative during the last week of the month.

4.3      Visits to other markets, peer learning and officer development. 

         The Market Manager has completed attendance of a diploma course in market
         managing in March. This has been a good networking and comparison 
         opportunity with other colleagues in the industry all from different parts of the
         country.

The Market Manager recently visited St Ives market near Cambridge and 
discussed operational issues with some good ideas around financial 
management systems that will be further researched and could be proposed for 
adoption at a later date. 

Page 35



 

Page 6 of 6

4.4      Barrier review

No barrier has been in place on a Tuesday throughout April. This trial period 
aimed to assess the impact of the barrier on the operational management of 
the high street on market days against the expenditure it entailed. Although 
Tuesday is the quieter day, the reason it was chosen not to have a barrier, it is 
the conclusion of officers that the reasons for initiating the barrier remains the 
same today. Those being:

 General public and trader safety (market structures limits natural site-lines, 
congestion on the road due to inconsiderately parked cars and buses which 
makes it difficult to navigate the road)

 Cars are parking inconsiderately blocking stalls, access points and even 
double parking causing problems with bus flow. 

 There is a vulnerability to traders and council staff particularly during the 
breakdown period of the market.

         Due to these factors at this moment in time it is a recommendation of officers to       
continue the barrier service on both days. This has financial implications as set 
out below. The difference will be made up within the current year budget 
allocation.

Financial Year Set Budgeted Actual Difference
2017/18 £9,000 £10,747 -£1,747
2018/19 £9,000 TBC TBC

     4.6 First 6 Month Review

The Council commissioned People and Places to undertake a second Town 
Centre Survey and Business Confidence Survey. This year, market traders were 
incorporated in the business confidence survey which took place early May. The 
questions asked repeat those originally asked when researching the 
performance of the market. This will allow for comparison data against the first 
baseline survey. Likewise, town centre users were also asked about their visits 
to the market. The data is being analysed and is the first draft is due by end of 
June.  This information will influence what performance monitoring systems are 
used in the future.             

END

Page 36



Market Sub-Committee                  Agenda Item no 6

Date: 17 May 2018

Title: Budget Report

Purpose of the Report: To provide income and expenditure figures relating to the 
performance of the market for the period January to March 
inclusive 2018. 

Contact Officer: Vivien Cannon, Head of Cultural & Economic Development 
Services

Corporate Objective/s LLTC Three Year Plan 
Aim 2: To promote & develop a vibrant town through partnership 
working & initiatives including management of the street market, 
provision of town & community promotions, town centre 
enhancements, tourism & practical support for local businesses

Implications:
Financial √ Review of income and expenditure figures January to 

March inclusive, financial year 2017/18 

1. RECOMMENDATION

1.1 To note the report. 

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 All figures are taken from the Council’s financial management system and rounded 
up to the nearest pound. The figures presented show all income and expenditure 
received and paid during the months presented

2.2 The figures provided in sections 3 and 4 reflect a two year financial period, not a 
calendar two year period. April being month 1 and concluding with March as month 
12.  

2.3 Expenditure is clarified as all running costs relating to the market, including staffing. 
It was noted that a more detailed expenditure report would be produced as part of the 
system-generated budget monitoring reports which would be provided to the parent 
committee, Cultural and Economic Services, on a quarterly basis (14th July 2016 
045/MK).

2.4 At the meeting on the 15th October 2015, it was requested to include a total year end 
figure for the previous year when looking at the running total income and expenditure 
of the current financial year.

Page 37

Agenda Item 6



 

Page 2 of 6

3. FINANCIAL INFORMATION COVERING JANUARY TO MARCH 2017/18

3.1 Income, expenditure and net for January to March 2018.

N.B. Since 23 September 2017, income reflects the changes in the new pricing policy thus 
income is lower initially at £50 - £60 pounds a market then varying due to casual trader 
attendance and seasonal impacts. In addition, the casual trader tariff was reduced to 
equal that of the permanent traders. This has now been changed and the two tariff 
levels was reintroduced in April 2018/19 (not reflected in this three-month comparison.)  
Committee will continue to see a change in income levels due to the endorsed changes 
to our pitch fee tariff.

Income:
   ^ Jan -  Generally on a par, one day charged at 50% due access issues to equipment
   “ Feb –  second day charged at 50% due to access issues to equipment (now resolved)

      and impact of trader ‘holiday’ use (attend yet no fee or no attendance) and 
      reduced casual trader attendance (the nature of ‘casual status’).

   = Mar -  One day cancelled due to bad weather. On-going trader use of ‘holiday ’allocation.   

Expenditure:
 There is no pattern to receiving contracted service invoices which reflects as variance 

in the monthly figures. 
 Market promotion, advertising and themed market activity will be reflected in monthly 

spend as per the delivery timetable reported on in agenda item 5.
 Security expenditure was higher than budgeted for. A review of the barrier 

expenditure has been undertaken as per agenda item 5.
 Refuse expenditure was higher than budgeted for. The market is part of a larger 

council-wide refuse contract which ends in March 2019. Officers will explore 
alternative refuse management options over coming months in readiness for the 
tendering for a new contract process. 

Jan-17 Jan-18 Feb-17 Feb-18 Mar-17Mar-18

-£10,000

-£5,000

£0

£5,000

£10,000

£15,000

Total Income
Total Expenditure
Net income

Market Income, Expenditure and Net Income for January 
to March 2018  

Summary: Jan-17 Jan-18 Feb-17 Feb-18 Mar-17 Mar-18

Total 
Income £6,642 ^£6,476 £6,226 “£5,900 £5,462 =£4,386
Total 
Expenditure £7,691 £9,746 £9,865 £9,057 ! £718 £8,787

Net income -£1,049 -£3,270 -£3,639 -£3,157 £4,744 -£4,401

Page 38



 

Page 3 of 6

Jan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18
0

1000

2000

3000

4000

Tuesday Saturday

Saturday and Tuesday 
Market Income for 

January to March 2018

Jan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18
£0

£50
£100
£150
£200
£250
£300
£350

Farmers Speciality Craft

Commercial Other

Other Market income activity for 
January to March 2018

3.2 Income comparison for January to March 2017.

Total Market 
Income: Jan-17 Jan-18 Feb-17 Feb-18 Mar-17 Mar-18

Tuesday £2,801 £2,744 £2,446 £2,224 £2,096 £2,169
Saturday £3,880 £3,306 £3,541 £3,514 £2,913 £1,815
Farmers £161 £126 £164 £162 £218 £162
Speciality 
(inc. Pop-
Up)

£0 £0 £75 £0 £15 £0

Craft £0 £0 £0 £0 £220 £240
Commercial £100 £300 £0 £0 £0 £0
Other £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

N.B. Quarterly income figures benefit from cross referencing with the trader targets    
presented in agenda item 5, as they provide background detail of market industry 
trends and trader recruitment issues.

 Observations are cross-referenced with those made above at Para 3.1. 
 As mentioned in Committee’s previous meeting, commercial income has seen a 

reduction this financial year as businesses rationalise their promotion activity, e.g. 
broadband services.

 Handmade and Craft speciality market runs from March to December only. A good 
level of return for the Easter, Mother’s Day season, etc.

 The Farmers continues to fluctuate. Some income changes can be explained by the 
trend of event/festival attendances. 

     
                                                            

        

Page 39



 

Page 4 of 6

4. FINANCIAL YEAR 2017/18

4.1 Actual year to date against end of year 2017/18.  

4.2 As per above, para 3.1, the new pitch fee structure has started to show in the income 
figures and will continue to do so over the next year. 

Annual 
Summary:

Total for 
YE2016/17

Target 
Total for 
YE2017/18

Actual for 
YE2017/18

Total Income £93,128 £119,600 £82,847
Total 
Expenditure £115,886 £123,416 £112,562
Net income 
(Subsidy) £22,758 £3,816 -£29,715

Total for 
YE2016/17

Target Total for 
YE2017/18

Running total for 
YE2017/18

-£40,000

-£20,000

£0

£20,000

£40,000

£60,000

£80,000

£100,000

£120,000

£140,000

Total Income Total Expenditure
Net income

4.3 The agreed budget for 2016-17 differes from the actual figures achieved that year. 
The ambitious growth in income set for 2017-18 could be considerd over ambitious. 
In turn it may be argued that this creates false performance expectations and does 
not utilise knowledge of the market’s operational influences. Expenditure issues 
relating to the refuse contract will remain in place until March 2019. The barrier 
expenditure allocation proved insufficient.

4.4 The table below shows the difference between the annually ‘set’ and ‘actual’ budget. 

Annual 
Summary:

Set budget 
for 2016/17

Actual 
for 
2016/17

Set budget 
for 2017/18

Actual 
for 
2017/18

Set 
budget 

for 
2018/19

Total Income £107,700 £93,128 £119,600 £82,847 £104,250
Total 
Expenditure £118,600 £115,886 £123,416 £112,562 £117,399
Net income 
(Subsidy) £10,900 £22,758 £3,816 -£29,715

predicted
£13,149

Actual year to date against annual finance target 
and previous year.

Page 40



 

Page 5 of 6

4.5 The last column of the above table shows the proposed budget for 2018/19. It is
more comparable with the 2016/17 set budget.

4.6 Reconciling the Council’s processes and timescales for budget preparation with that 
     of the Committee timescales for endorsement of the new market tariff will again prove
     the 2018/19 set budget is out of sync with the expected income changes. Committee 

can anticipate a continued difference between set budget and actual monthly/ end of 
year figures for the foreseeable future.

4.7      Following the finalisation of pitch tariffs, over the next few months officers will work 
on providing a more predictable income expectation and liaise with the Council’s        
contracted accountant to explore alternative monitoring and reporting options.

5. COMPARISONS (as provided at the previous meeting) 

5.1     Year-end comparisons as provided at the previous Committee meeting with 2017/18
      actuals – pending end of year sign-off.

Total Income 2012-2013
#
2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017

&
2017-2018

Tuesday £34,363 £48,142 £41,477 £37,790 £37,638 £32,621
Saturday £39,090 £46,402 £44,730 £51,048 £47,832 £44,063
Farmers £1,840 £1,864 £1,674 £1,334 £1,668 £1,800

Other £3,005 £4,156 £4,437 “£2,392 £3,740 £3,074

    

Total Income £78,298 £100,564 *£92,318 £96,351 £93,128 £82,847
Total 

Expenditure £79,041 £81,982
+  ~ 

£110,134 £104,984 £115,886 £112,562
Total Net 

income   -£743 £18,582 -£17,816 -£8,633 -£22,758 -£29,715
6.  

 Three cancelled markets due to weather conditions in YE2014-15.
   (10th Dec 2014 /27th Dec 2014 /31st March 2015). Total loss of income £2,700.
 YE2013-14 Town Centre and Market officer salary was a part time role, split 

between another budget code. Workload was reviewed and budgets
       reallocated at the beginning of 2014.
~ Barrier contract commenced originally at £6,000 and increased to £9,000 in
      2016.
# In 2014 the Council entered a new waste management contract. 
“ In 2015-2016 Committee requested that ‘commercial’ and ‘miscellaneous’
      income is excluded from the ‘other’ total income presented above. Therefor 
      the first 3 year’s reporting is not comparable to the following years though all
      yearly totals are combined in the Council’s financial budget sheets. 
& From the September relaunch date, a number of traders commenced paying
     a reduced pitch fee as per the new fee structure.  

Page 41



 

Page 6 of 6

5.2        The grid below shows the true comparison for ‘other’ income and includes visiting 
        markets, craft’ and pop-up’ monthly speciality markets. 

Total Income 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017
 2017-2018
To end of Dec

Other 
(excluding) £2,030 £3,656 £3,213 £2,392 £3,740 £3,074

Other 
(including) £3,005 £4,156 £4,437 £6,179 £5,990 £4,361

6 CONCLUSION

6.2 As a community function, the Town Council is prepared to continue to subsidise the 
market and its operation for the short-term at least. Officers will continue to explore 
expenditure related options, e.g. refuse collection.

END

Page 42


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
	5 GENERAL MARKET UPDATE
	Agenda item no 5 Appendix B
	Agenda item no 5 Appendix C
	General Market Update

	6 MARKET BUDGET REPORT

